
Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  117 Botchergate 

Carlisle  CA1 1RD 
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

17 October 2019

To:  The Chair and Members of the Cumbria 
Health and Wellbeing Board

Agenda
CUMBRIA HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

A Special meeting of the Cumbria Health and Wellbeing Board will be held as follows: 

Date: Friday 25 October 2019
Time: 10.00 am
Place: Conference Room A/B, Cumbria House, Carlisle. CA1 1RD

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Lynn Harker
Direct Line: 01228 226364 / 07825340229
Email: lynn.harker@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



MEMBERSHIP

Mr SF Young, Leader – Cumbria County Council (Chair)
Mrs P Bell, Cabinet Member – Health and Care Services - Cumbria County Council
Mr D Blacklock, Chief Executive Officer – Healthwatch Cumbria
Mrs A Burns, Cabinet Member – Children’s Services (Statutory Lead Member for 
  Children’s Services - Cumbria County Council
Mr C Cox, Director of Public Health - Cumbria County Council 
Mr A Cummins, Chief Executive – University Hospital Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation 
  Trust
Professor S Eames, Chief Executive – North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Foundation 
  Trust
Ms D Earl, Cabinet Member – Public Health and Community Services – Cumbria County
  Council
Miss K Fairclough, Chief Executive - Cumbria County Council
Mrs M Fitzgerald, Representative of the six District Councils (Leader, Allerdale Borough 
  Council)
Mr J Hawker, Chief Officer – NHS Morecambe Bay CCG
Mr N Jarman, Interim Executive Director – People - Cumbria County Council 
Mr I Johnson, Chair - University Hospital Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust
Dr G Jolliffe, Chair - Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group (Vice-Chair)
Mr C Ranshaw, Third Sector Network Representative
Dr D Rogers, Associate Officer - NHS North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group
Mr J Rush, Chair - NHS North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group (Vice-Chair)
Professor R Talbot, Chair – North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust
Representative from NHS England

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
www.cumbria.gov.uk 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Legal and Democratic Services Unit at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/


A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence. 
  

2  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the authority; and



(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).   
  

3  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda.
  

4  HEALTH AND CARE STRATEGY  

a  North Cumbria 

To consider a report by the North Cumbria System Lead (copy enclosed).  
(Pages 5 - 48)

b  Lancashire and South Cumbria 

To consider a report by Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care System 
(copy enclosed).
 (Pages 49 - 58)

5  FUTURE MEETING DATES

To note the list of future meeting and development dates (copy enclosed).
  (Pages 59 - 60)



CUMBRIA HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Meeting date:    25 October 2019

From: North Cumbria System Lead – Stephen Eames 

NORTH CUMBRIA HEALTH AND CARE STRATEGY

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 The NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) requires local health systems to set out 
plans in 2019 about how they will deliver the outcomes set out in the plan.

1.2 This report provides members with an update in three core areas:

 Development of the strategy for health and care in North Cumbria
 North East and North Cumbria Integrated Care System (ICS) Plan
 North Cumbria Integrated Care Partnership Narrative (as part of the 

overarching ICS plan). 

2.0 LINKS TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY

2.1 The local system plan is integral to the delivery of the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy.  Considerable work has been undertaken between partners to 
ensure that the Health and Wellbeing Strategy – and in particular the Health 
and Wellbeing board’s priority areas are core elements of the system 
strategy for North Cumbria. 

3.0 RECOMMENDATION

That the board agrees to:
3.1 Endorse the strategy for North Cumbria as set out in Appendix 1 and confirm 

this aligns with the Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Cumbria. 
3.2 Note the draft ICP narrative which has been submitted for the North Cumbria 

Integrated Care Partnership (Appendix 2). 

4.0 BACKGROUND 

4.1 The Sustainability and Transformation Plan previously published in October 
2016 set out the strategic direction of travel for the North Cumbria system.  
This included the commitments made following the public consultation – 
healthcare for the future. Many of the commitments have now been 
delivered, with Hyper Acute Stroke Care going live from October 2019.   

5

Agenda Item 4a



4.2 In November 2018 work commenced to review and refresh our overarching 
strategy for North Cumbria alongside the publication of the NHS Long Term 
Plan in January 2019. During May – July 2019 engagement with our 
patients, communities, partners and our staff took place to seek views on the 
priorities we have set out for the future. This feedback was formally reported 
to the System Leadership Board in September 2019 and has shaped and 
influenced our strategy and the priorities we have set out. 

4.3 Some of the high level feedback included:

 More emphasis on children and young people provision.
 Digital should be clearly referenced as an enabler in its own right
 More emphasis for mental health provision particularly for access to 

psychological and talking therapies and support services for young 
people.

 Parity of esteem and our approaches to health inequalities. 
 Timely and reliable access to services – primary care, hospital services, 

outpatients and community appointments.
 Emphasis on delivering services as locally as possible - understanding 

the impact on patients when having to travel.
 Innovation.
 Reducing our carbon footprint and our impact on the environment to be 

more visible.
 Strong sense that being remote and rural is both a hindrance and an 

asset, and that we need to utilise the opportunities that this affords in 
terms of our uniqueness.

 A focus on retention and supporting our workforce is critical. 
 Involve patients and the third sector in improving services.

4.4 The draft strategy (attached at Appendix 1) sets out our overarching 
strategic aims for the next five years, what this means for starting well, living 
well and ageing well and how we will respond to meet the requirements of 
the NHS Long Term Plan. 

4.5 It is important to highlight that the strategy developed for the North Cumbria 
system replaces the individual organisational approaches to strategies in 
health across North Cumbria.   

4.6 The strategy has been developed to support and fully align with the Cumbria 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy, and therefore presents a real opportunity to 
align and collectively lead the improvements needed in health and wellbeing 
outcomes for our communities. 

4.7 The draft strategy has been shared with the North Cumbria Integrated Care 
NHS Foundation Trust Board, North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group, 
General Practice Leaders and Health and Wellbeing Board members at its 
development session in October 2019 and is attached at Appendix 1 to this 
report. 

4.8 The strategy will be presented for approval at the System Leadership Board 
on November 7th. 

4.9 Work on the delivery plans that will underpin delivery across the strategy 
aims and enablers has commenced and will form part of the annual planning 
cycle. 

6



5.0 NORTH EAST AND NORTH CUMBRIA INTEGRATED CARE 
SYSTEM LONG TERM STRATEGIC PLAN 

5.1 The North Cumbria Health and Care System has made significant progress 
over the last two years in developing system wide leadership, changing the 
health landscape in order to facilitate improvements in outcomes and 
address the long standing sustainability issues across North Cumbria. In 
May 2018, the North Cumbria system was announced as one of fourteen 
nationally recognised integrated care systems. 

5.2 In June 2019, the North Cumbria system became part of the broader North 
East and North Cumbria Integrated Care System and is technically referred 
to as one of four Integrated Care Partnerships in place across the North East 
and North Cumbria ICS:

5.3 Working with our regional partners, North Cumbria (as one of four Integrated 
Care Partnerships across North Cumbria and the North East) is also 
supporting the development of a North East and North Cumbria strategic 
plan (as an Integrated Care System).  There are nationally mandated 
timescales for this work with a final deadline of the 15th November 2019.

5.4 The North Cumbria ICP has had to complete a narrative template as part of 
the broader ICS plan for the North East and North Cumbria. This draft 
narrative has been taken from our strategy for North Cumbria and is 
attached at Appendix 2 for members to note. 

5.5 A core set of metrics/indicators will be established for all ICS’s and ICP’s and 
are likely to form part of the annual planning cycle.  The draft metrics are 
attached at Appendix 3 for information. 

5.6 The three other ICPs across the broader region have also completed a 
similar narrative template.   The target operating model and priorities across 
the broader region are summarised in figure 2 below. The ICS plan is in draft 
stage and will be shared with the Health and Wellbeing Board in December 
2019. 

Figure 1: North East and North 
Cumbria Integrated Care Partnerships:

North Cumbria 
North

Central 
South 

7



Figure 2 – High level summary from draft NENC ICS Submission 
September 2019

5.7 The size of the strategic plan for the North East and North Cumbria (NENC) 
will be one of the largest across the NHS, covering a population of over 3 
million people.  It is therefore complex in nature due to the multiple 
partnerships in place across health, local government and third sector. In 
addition, how the improvements in outcomes are delivered in a meaningful 
way, locally at place, will be crucial to delivering the improvements set out in 
the NHS Long Term Plan. 

Stephen Eames
System Lead – North Cumbria Integrated Health and Care System

October 2019

8



APPENDICES

Appendix 1 North Cumbria Integrated Health and Care System Strategy
Appendix 2 North Cumbria ICP Narrative Plan
Appendix 3 Draft NHS Long Term Plan System Metrics

BACKGROUND PAPERS

No background papers.
Contact: Ramona Duguid, Executive Director of Strategy 
Email: Ramona.Duguid@ncic.nhs.uk

9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Our Strategy
2019-24
Building Integrated Care:
Happier, healthier communities.

11



2 3

Contents

1.
Our vision - Where do we want to be?
Joining up our ambition
Our Aims -  What we want to achieve

Developing Health and Care in North Cumbria
1.2
1.3
1.4

2. Where are we now?
What is North Cumbria Health and Care?
Model of Care
Services in North Cumbria

2.1
2.2
2.3

3. Our Journey so far?
What we are doing differently3.1

4. Our Aims for the Future
Strategic Aim One
Strategic Aim Two
Strategic Aim Three
Strategic Enabler A
Strategic Enabler B

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5

5. Making it Happen and Monitoring Progress
5.2 How we will monitor our progress5.2

12



4 5

1. Developing Health 
and Care in North 
Cumbria.
We want people in North Cumbria to have happier, healthier 
lives, this means working together to ensure that people 
‘start well’, ‘live well’ and ‘age well’.

Working together, we want to make sure the 
services we provide are effective and that people 
are empowered to make the best choices.

The NHS Long Term Plan, which was published 
in January 2019, sets out a vision to improve 
and integrate services to make them better for 
patients. We have also listened to our staff, 
partners and community about what good health 
and care should look like here.

We also have to face up to the changing needs 
of our communities many of whom are older and 
living with several long terms conditions. Like the 
rest of the NHS we also face challenges in our 
workforce and are finding it difficult to recruit in 
some specialist areas and that can affect of the 
sustainability of some services.

We are building health and care 
services that will work for the future:

• To reduce health inequalities – closing the gap in variation in 
health outcomes and experience of our communities. 

• To prevent you becoming unwell – reducing the growing demand 
on urgent and emergency care. 

• To better co-ordinate care for people living with several major 
conditions, such as; diabetes, heart disease and dementia – so 
care experience is more joined up. 

• To innovate and make better use of new technologies to change 
the way we access and deliver care. 

• To ensure where possible that services are delivered closer to 
where people live – we know it can be difficult to travel around 
North Cumbria. 

• To retain and recruit the staff we need we need to ensure they 
are valued and supported through a positive culture. 

• To make best use of our limited resources we will provide care in 
the right place, in the right way at the right time and improve our 
efficiency, reducing our corporate and environmental footprint.

• To develop high quality, sustainable services including the West 
Cumberland Hospital development and a new Cancer Centre.

‘Building Integrated Care: Happier, healthier 
communities’ will transform the way in which health and 
care services care for, involve and support the 325,000 
residents of North Cumbria.

In North Cumbria our health and care providers and commissioners 
are working in partnership with the County Council, the Third Sector 
and our community to develop an integrated care partnership. 
This means that instead of working just within our individual 
organisations, we are working together and collaborating across all 
parts of the health and care system to improve outcomes for our 
local population.

13



6 7

1.2 Our Vision – 
where do we want
to be?

We want to build 
a new integrated 
health and care 

system together, 
using our collective 

capabilities for 
a healthier and 

happier population.

1.3 Joining up 
our ambition 

Designing our five year plan hasn’t been done in 
isolation – we have aligned our priorities with the 
NHS Long Term Plan, and with the Cumbria Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy 2019-2029 as well as 
other plans such as Children and Young People’s 
Plan and the Thriving Communities Plan.

We are working with our partners, both within 
Cumbria and the North East, to ensure our 
ambition and resources are joined up, because we 
will have the biggest impact by working together.

14



8 9

w

1.4 Our Aims - What 
we want to achieve

To deliver our vision we have three aims that will enable us to 

Improve the health and care 
outcomes of our local communities 
and support people of all ages to be 
in control of their own health

Build Health and care services around 
our local communities

Provide safe and 
sustainable high quality 
services

3 Strategic Aims

4 Strategic Enablers
These are supported by four enablers – these are key areas 
which will help us to move forward.

1.5 What this means for 
individuals, 
communities and staff. 

What this means for individuals? 
We’ll help you to stay well and when you need to access 
help we will ensure you get the right care, in the right 
place at the right time when you need us.

• We will empower you and your carers to 
manage your own health conditions

• We will get better at sharing information so 
you don’t have to tell your story many times

• We know ‘There’s No Place Like Home’, so 
health and care teams will work together to 
ensure you only have to go into hospital if 
absolutely necessary

• You will be able to access timely advice from 
health and care professionals  – this might be 
through better use of technology

• We will listen to you and involve you in 
planning your care

Live within our 
means and utilise 
resources wisely

Integrate how 
health and 
care and other 
organisations 
work together

Deliver digitally 
enabled care

Be a great place 
to work and 
develop.

15



10 11

What this means for communities? 
We want our population to have the best start in life, live 
well and age well.

• We will involve our community in shaping and 
improving services by working together, we 
will make the most of our shared commitment, 
energy and ideas

• We will share both our challenges and 
successes with our communities

• We will become a centre of excellence for 
planning and delivering services in rural and 
remote communities, linking to the University of 
Central Lancashire’s (UCLan) national centre 
for remote and rural medicine

What this means for our staff?

• You will feel valued and empowered – as an 
individual and as a team

• Our values of - Kindness, Respect, Ambition, 
and Collaboration – will guide the way we 
work.

• You will have more opportunities to develop 
your skills and shape new roles to meet the 
changing needs of our communities. 

• We will build and develop services which allow 
our staff to provide treatment and care in a 
way which is manageable and rewarding

• We will tackle the significant challenges 
affecting the health and wellbeing of our urban 
and rural communities - focusing on those 
areas of greatest need

• We will be innovative in our approach to 
building sustainable health and care services 
for the future

• We will support our communities to feel 
confident they can live well independently 
and can access high quality care when it is 
needed.

• We will develop new services 
to support people with more 
complex conditions

• We will make it easier for 
you to share information 
with other teams and across 
organisations

• We will listen and respond to 
your ideas and concerns to 
build a culture which is safe, 
open and forward thinking

2. Where are we now?

We have already started to 
make changes, responding 

to the needs of our 
communities. Many of 

the NHS Long Term Plan 
intentions reflect initiatives 

already underway here.

Our local needs will help 
shape how we deliver other 

national priorities.

KINDNESS RESPECT AMBITION COLLABORATION

16



12 13

2.1 What is North 
Cumbria Health
and Care?

Our health services, North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust (formerly North 
Cumbria University Hospitals NHS Trust and Cumbria Partnership NHS Foundation Trust) 
and NHS North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group, have been making shared decisions 
and setting system priorities for some time. Sharing the challenges of finance, workforce and 
improvement has enabled us to remove the distraction of organisational priorities, helping us 
to focus our collective resources on patients and communities.

We are also working in partnership with Cumbria 
County Council to ensure our plans support the 
overarching aims of the ten year Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy for Cumbria.

Working collaboratively with our out of hours 
GP service Cumbria Health on Call (CHOC), our 
39 GP practices we are supporting our primary 
care networks. Our partners include; North 
West Ambulance Service (NWAS), community 
pharmacies, our vibrant Third Sector and our 
regulators NHS England / Improvement.

We are listening to our staff to help us innovate 
and improve the way we do things and we are 
building co-production as the way we involve 
our communities in our system improvement and 
development.

2.2 Model of Care

Our model of care has a much stronger focus on 
preventing ill health and supporting self-care. It 
will mean better care for people with long term 
conditions and access to the right specialist health 
and care support when you need it.

By working together we can pool our health and care 
resources to better respond to the specific needs of our 
communities, helping us all to start well, live well and 
age well.

To deliver this our health and care services will 
be organised around you, your family and your 
community.

Services
helping
you to
stay well

Services
closer to where 
you live
Integrated 
Care
Communities

Hospital
Services
in North
Cumbria

Specialised 
Services 
rare and 
more
complex
conditions 
you may 
have to 
travel for.

We are part of the North East and North Cumbria 
Integrated Care System, working closely with 
regional partners facing similar challenges 
including workforce and sustaining services.

17



14 151514

2.3 Services for
people of North
Cumbria

Health & Wellbeing 
Coaches 

Immunisations 
programme

Mental Health First 
Step

Active Cumbria

Falls Prevention 
Services

Health Visiting 
Service

Stop smoking 
services

General Practice 
Services/ Primary Care 
Networks

Community Pharmacies 

Some dentistry services

Domiciliary Care 
(personal care services)

Social care 

Third Sector Services

Carers Services

Mental Health Services

Community Nursing

Community paramedics 

Memory & Later Life

Physiotherapy / 
Musculoskeletal 
Disease

Palliative Care

Chronic & Acute Pain 
Service

Child & Adolescent 
Mental Health Services

Services helping 
you to stay well

Services closer to where you live 
- Integrated Care Communities

Hospital Services 
in North Cumbria

Accident & Emergency

Critical Care Medicine

Outpatient Services
Wide range of 
specialities such as (not 
exhaustive list):

• Trauma & 
Orthopaedics

• Gastro Intestinal 
• Ear Nose and 

Throat

• Ophthalmology

• Respiratory 

• Cardiology

• Hyper Acute Stroke 
Service

• Paediatrics

Cancer Services 
(diagnosis and 
treatment)

Consultant & Midwifery 
led Maternity Services 

Mental health inpatient 
units

Radiology  (imaging; 
X-ray, MRI) 

Complex medical 
conditions such as rare 
cancers

Genetic disorders

Very complex
surgery such as:
 
• Heart transplants 
• Brain tumour 

surgery

Specialised
Services - rare
and more complex
conditions you may 
have to travel for.

We provide and 
commission
hundreds of different 
health and care 
services for the people 
of North Cumbria, these 
include:

18



16 17 1716

2.4 Key facts about 
our population  
We have to understand the
differing health and care needs 
of our communities.

North Cumbria
5,155SQ KM

Making better use of data and information we can plan care more effectively and deliver better 
outcomes. This will also enable us to provide the right services, in the right place, at the right time to 
improve care and ensure the best use of resources

47.3M

Visitors
a year
to the Lake
District

Population

324,000

Aging Population.

Population
over 6 5

1 8 %
National
Average

3 2 %
Cumbria
Average

Now

2 4 %
Cumbria
Average

2029

Now

1 2 , 9 8 1
Now

1 5 , 7 2 2
2027

1 9 , 9 0 9
2037

One person 
households over 
the age of 75

Large rural area,
sparsely populated.

1 8 %
National
Average

5 4 %
Cumbria 
Average

Percentage
of Population
in Rural
Communities

5 6
London

4 . 3
England

0 . 6
Cumbria

per hectare

per hectare

per hectare

19



18 19

Wider determinants of health

There are a diverse range of social, economic and 
environmental factors which impact on people’s health such 
as housing, employment and the environment.

1 7 %
of North
Cumbria is 
within the most
deprived 20% 
in England

There are high levels 
of poverty and 
deprivation in some 
parts of the urban areas 
of West Cumbria and 
Carlisle. There are 
also pockets of rural 
deprivation.

Poverty
Levels

1 1 . 3 % 
are living in 
Fuel Poverty

1 3 % 
of children are 
living in poverty

People living in the most deprived neighbourhoods 
in North Cumbria are more than twice as likely 
to be admitted to hospital as an emergency 
compared to those living in the least deprived 
areas in North Cumbria

pupils in some of the
most deprived areas claim

1  i n  3

Lifestyle choice factors

These are modifiable habits and ways of life that can 
greatly influence your overall health and well-being and are 
often determined by your wider determinants of health

2 5 %
of adults

not meeting the 
physical activity 

2 5 %
of children
not meeting the 
physical activity 

65,400

11,400

1  i n  7
adults smoke

2 2 %
of the North Cumbria adult 
population drink more than 
the recommended 14 units of 
alcohol a week.  

1 1 , 4 7 5 
alcohol related admissions a 

20



20 21

The health of the population

The social and economic inequalities that exist in North 
Cumbria reflect the difference in health outcomes across 
our communities. 

average age 7 9 . 1 8 2 . 6  average age
in North Cumbria in North Cumbria

79.6 Nationally 83.1 Nationally 

1 7 . 4
years
ill health

1 5
years ill

health

6 5 . 4 
years
good
health

6 4 . 4
years 
good

health

90 years90 years

of children are 
overweight or obese 
compared to 22% 
nationally

6 5 % 1  suicide per week
Cumbria has one of the highest suicide rates in 
the UK. On average one person a week takes their 
own life in the county. Suicide rate in Cumbria 
is 12.1 per 100,000 population, compared to the 
national rate of 9.6 per 100,000

Number of people in North Cumbria with certain major health conditions:

5 2 , 8 0 0 
High
blood
pressure

4 4 , 1 0 0 
Ongoing
Mental
Health
Condition

3 3 , 9 0 0 
Depression

2 1 , 4 0 0 
Asthma

2 0 , 6 0 0 
diabetes

1 6 , 5 0 0 
Chronic 
Kidney 
Disease

1 5 , 9 0 0 
Coronary 
Heart 
Disease

1 2 , 0 0 0 
Cancer

Health and Care Activity

This is the breadth of demand on health and care services 
across North Cumbria in one year 2018/19

Calls in 100,000

2 , 1 1 4 , 0 0 0
Calls to GP 
Practices in 
North Cumbria

0 2.5m

0 100,000

5 4 , 0 0 0

6 9 , 0 0 0
999 calls made

111 calls made

1 2 1 , 0 0 0
Accident & 
Emergency and 
minor injury units 
attendances

3 5 , 0 0 0
Emergency 
admissions

2 9 , 0 0 0
Local planned 
admissions 
for treatment/
surgery

2 3 7 , 0 0 0
Outpatient 
Appointments

1 2 1 , 0 0 0
Diagnostic tests

4 , 0 0 0
Adult Mental 
Health referrals

8 0 0
Adult Community 
Mental Health 
admissions

4 6 , 0 0 0
Improving 
Access to 
Psychological 
Therapies 
contacts  

Contacts with our services

3 8 1 , 0 0 0
Community 
nurse contacts

3 2 , 0 0 0
Contacts by 
service users to 
adult social care 
services9 , 4 0 0

Contacts by 
service users 
to Children’s 
services

of adults are overweight 
or obese compared to 
62% nationally

2 2 %

21



22 23

Health and Care Challenges

We have a lot to do to tackle historic and ongoing 
challenges, but we believe that by working together with our 
communities, we can ensure that North Cumbria will be a 
better place to ‘Start Well’, ‘Live Well’ and ‘Age Well’.

By working together, we have already made some real 
improvements. 

We struggle to recruit 
and retain medical and 
nursing staff and have 

medical vacancy rate of 
1 1 . 2 %

In General Practice 2 0 % 
of posts are vacant with 

some areas in the west of 
Cumbria as high as 3 9 %

Although improving there 
is annual deficit of £ 3 0 m 
in health care provision

We need to
improve outcomes for

people with major conditions
such as, Cardiovascular
Disease, Mental Health

and Asthma

Our staff surveys show 
that in some areas job 
satisfaction levels are 

lower than national 
average

We have increasing
demand for services, 

particularly in adult social care, 
and local government has faced 

significant budget reductions 
over the past few years

2 0 1 6

2 0 1 8

we held our 
‘Healthcare for 
the Future’ public 
consultation about 
some of the services 
where there were 
concerns about the 
sustainability, and this 
has given us clear 
priorities.

North Cumbria was 
recognised nationally 
as a leading system for 
Integrated Health and 
Care

We are working 
collaboratively with frontline 
staff and our communities 
who have ideas about how 
things could be better.

3.1 What we are doing differently

Reducing 
hospital

discharge 
delays

Award winning 
workforce 
model to 
develop 

frontline roles

Short stay 
paediatric 

assessment 
units in 
hospital

Delirium 
service

Cumbria 
Learning 

Improvement 
Collaborative 

(CLIC)

Copeland 
Community 

Stroke 
Prevention 

project 

Musculo-
skeletal 

service in the 
community

£16.6m 
efficiency 

programme in 
18/19

Video link 
outpatients 

appointments

Digital 
maternity 

notes

Copeland 
Same Day 

Health 
Centre

GP 
appointments 

to 7 days a 
week

3. Our Journey so far

1 2 3 4 5

6

1 1 1 2

7 8 9 1 0

22



24 25

 To identify people who might have AF the Cumbria 
Fire & Rescue Service now carry out AF screening 
during their fire and safety home visits to the over 
65s. Using a mobile screening device people who 
have a positive result for AF are referred to their 
local Integrated Care Community (ICC) and invited 
to visit their GP to discuss appropriate treatment 
options, potentially reducing their chances of 
having a stroke in the future.

 Since going live on 
1 April 2019, 100% of 
women registering a 
new pregnancy have 
signed up to the app. 

The new digital system 
replaces the traditional 
paper based working, with 
notes being held digitally for 
staff and linking to a phone 
app so women no longer 
need to carry their notes to 
appointments.

The first birth using entirely digital 
maternity notes in north Cumbria at 
West Cumberland 

This electronic service enables 
GPs to quickly obtain advice 
from specialists about patients, 
enabling GPs to manage more 
patients closer to where they live 
without the need for a referral to 
hospital.  

Advice & 
Guidance for 
GPs 

Preventing strokes with 
Cumbria Fire & Rescue 
Service

of strokes are 
caused by Atrial 
Fibrillation (AF) 
- an irregular or 
fast heartbeat.

2 0 %

3.2  Integrated Care Communities  
We know that care and support can sometimes feel 
un-coordinated and disjointed. We are committed to 
ensuring that in working together your care will be co-
ordinated, seamless and empowering. 

 An Integrated Care Community (ICC) works together to 
improve the overall health and wellbeing of the community by: 

Joining up health and 
care services to work 
better together.

Providing more care 
out of hospital where 
possible.

Helping people to 
have the right support 
and information to 
manage their own 
health.

We have created eight 
Integrated Care Communities 
in North Cumbria where teams 
of health and social care 
professionals, GPs, the Third 
Sector and the community are 
working together as one team 
supporting people’s health and 
wellbeing. Their focus is to help 
people manage major health 
conditions, improve access 
to information about healthier 
lifestyles and provide more 
care out of hospital so people 
can stay as well, at home and 
independent, for as long as 

possible. By understanding 
the challenges that each 
community faces, and by using 
the knowledge and experience 
of local people we can work 
together to improve the health 
and wellbeing for all the people 
of North Cumbria. Our eight 
Integrated Care Communities 
are shown in the map on the 
next page.

 Our eight Integrated Care Communities 

23



26 27

Carlisle Healthcare ICC & 
Carlisle Network ICC
Brampton & Longtown ICC
Copeland ICC
Eden ICC

Keswick & Solway ICC
Maryport & Cockermouth ICC
Workington ICC

We have created a short animation which explains 
ICCs in North Cumbria and what they mean for 
the health and care needs of local people: www.
northcumbriaccg.nhs.uk/about-us/ICCs/iccs.aspx.

4.1 Strategic Aim One
4 Our Aims for the Future

Improve the health and care outcomes of our local 
communities and support people of all ages to be in 
control of their own health.

Working with all health and care partners we will 
build a population health system that focuses on 
prevention, supporting and empowering people 
to make the right choices about their health and 
reducing variation in outcomes that exist across 
our communities.

The difference in life expectancy between the best 
and worst areas is 8 years for women and 9.5 

years for men. Parts of West Cumbria have the 
highest rates of childhood obesity in the country.

Addressing the inequalities and variation that 
exists in outcomes, quality and provision of 
services across North Cumbria is important to 
improving the health and wellbeing of our local 
population.

The NHS Long 
Term Plan.

LTP Ambition: Preventing illness and 
tackling health inequalities, nationally 
the NHS has committed to increasing its 
contribution to tackling some of the most 
significant causes of ill health, including 
new action to help people stop smoking, 
overcome drinking problems and avoid 
developing Type 2 diabetes, with a 
particular focus on the communities and 
people most at risk by:

Giving people more 
control over their 
own health and more 
personalised care.

Tackling the wider 
determinants of 
health e.g. housing, 
environment, 
employment.

More NHS action on 
prevention.

Increasing the focus 
on population health.

Better care for major 
health conditions – 
Physical and Mental 
Health.

Each Integrated Care 
Community has a hub which 
co-ordinates resources to 
ensure that people experience 
well-planned and co-ordinated 
care utilising local support, 
knowledge and experience.

GP

Social Worker

Community Nursing

Mental Health

Pharmacist

Integrated 
Care 
Communites

24



28 29

Support the third 
sector who provide 
preventative social 
prescribing

When we asked 
people about what we 
must do over the next 
five years they said:

Empowering 
people to take 
control of their 
own health

Improve our 
major conditions 
pathways and 
outcomes

Help address 
the causes of ill 
health

Mental health
given equal priority 
to physical health
(Parity of Esteem) 

Improve the 
collaboration of 
mental and physical 
health services for 
patients

Provide access 
to services and 
our records in 
a different way; 
online and remotely

Our Successful Strategy 
will lead to:

Starting 
well

Better births – a maternity 
service that is safe, effective 
and personalised

Person-centred integrated 
community approach for 
children and young 
peoples’ mental 
and physical 
health.

Identify the risk factors affecting the 
health of our communities and offer 
the right support services to help 
prevent ill health.
Smoking, alcohol and obesity 
prevalence reductions.

Improved wellbeing in communities.

Reduction in variation of services, 
reduced prevalence and improved 
outcomes for the following major 
health conditions:

• Diabetes
• Mental Health conditions
• Cancer
• Stroke care
• Respiratory disease
• Cardiovascular disease.

Ageing 
well

Integrated pathways to 
support the elderly to live 
well and independently

Reducing social isolation

Improvements in both 
the overall life 
expectancy and 
difference in life
expectancy - 
closing the
gaps.

Living
well

Changes that contribute 
to this aim:

Digital app for pregnant women during their maternity 
care.

Population Health Management –using data for 
targeted improvement work in our communities.

Social prescribing – linking people with locally 
available support for their health and wellbeing needs.

Support to stop smoking
Support to maintain a healthy weight

Starting
Well

Improve the physical and mental
health outcomes for children and
young people.

Work together to address the wider 
determinants of health and support people 
to actively manage their own health and 
wellbeing.

Living
Well

Support older people to live independently 
with integrated and targeted interventions 
and new technology.

Ageing
Well

25



30 31

4.2 Strategic Aim Two

Build health and care services around our local 
communities
We know that at times care can feel disjointed 
and that you don’t always receive the right 
support when you need it. By joining up health 
and care teams around our local communities 
we can respond and tailor that care and support. 
This will better meet the changing needs of our 
communities and the people who live in them.  

We know that over the next twenty years the 
proportion of people aged over 75 living in their 
own homes will increase by 38%

The NHS Long 
Term Plan.
Nationally the NHS has committed to a 
new service model for the 21st Century 
(doing things differently)

Encouraging more collaboration 
between GPs, their teams and 
community services in ‘primary 
care networks’.

Giving people more control over 
their own health and care.

Building multidisciplinary teams 
with; clinical pharmacists, physician 
associates, physiotherapists and 
community paramedics and social 
prescribing link workers

Enhancing rapid community 
response teams, to prevent 
unnecessary emergency hospital 
admissions and speed up 
discharges

Enhanced NHS support in care 
homes

When we asked people 
about what we must do 
over the next five years 

they said:

Our Successful Strategy 
will lead to:

Starting 
well

Ageing 
well

Living
wellChildren and families 

thriving and supported 
through our Integrated 
Care Communities (ICCs) Our ICCs continuing to 

improve the joined up and 
place based approach to 
care.

Adult Mental Health 
services embedded in our 
ICCs.

Frail elderly patients 
supported by ICCs to:

• Avoid unnecessary 
hospital admissions

• Stay well at home with 
personalised care 
packages

We want more 
joined up care

Better use of 
technology

Personalised 
care and support

Help people live 
at home 

Quicker
access to the 

right care
Communities

to be involved in 
shaping future 

services

Better 
communication 

26



32 33

Changes that contribute to this aim:

Further develop ICCs to include mental health, 
physiotherapy service and children’s services. 

Develop pathways of care for patients that join together 
primary, community and secondary care.

Improve quality and experience.

Communities will be involved in shaping
future services.

Embed children and young people’s 
physical and mental services into our ICCs 

Starting
Well

Develop primary care mental health services 
within our ICCs

Actively identify people at risk of becoming ill and 
support them to stay well

Improve joined up care to be more 
responsive for older people.

Ageing
Well

Utilise technology to monitor people’s health at home 
and develop interventions and target disease across 
communities

An increase in use of the Third Sector and social 
prescribing.

Primary Care Networks (PCNs) delivering significant 
changes to how care is provided in communities.

Living
Well

4.3 Strategic Aim Three

Provide safe and sustainable high quality services 
across our sparsely populated area

To meet the changing needs of our communities 
we need to find innovative ways in which to 
develop and deliver quality care more sustainably. 
By working with our partners, both within Cumbria 
and the North East we will develop our services to 
deliver the right care to meet our local needs.

We know our unique geography creates specific 
challenges for staff, patients and delivery of 
services.

The NHS Long 
Term Plan.
Nationally the NHS has committed to 
further progress on care quality and 
outcomes with a focus on research and 
innovation to drive improvement.

Children and young people will 
be given a strong start in life with 
improvements in:

• Maternity and neonatal services
• Children and young people’s mental 

health services
• Learning disability and autism 

services
• Services for children and young 

people with cancer

There will be better care for 
people with major health 
conditions such as:

• Cancer 
• Cardiovascular disease 
• Stroke care 
• Diabetes 
• Respiratory disease 
• Adult mental health 

services 

27



34 35

When we asked people 
about what we must do 
over the next five years 

they said:

Services should 
remain local where 

possible.

Use innovation to develop 
and deliver services in 
rural areas including 
advances in digital 

Focus on 
providing high 

quality joined up 

Recognise the 
challenges for people 
who have to travel for 

Work with people and 
communities to make 

changes that are 
patient driven

Timely access to 
services

Reduce waiting
times

Our Successful 
Strategy will lead to:

Starting 
well

Ageing 
well

Living
well

Better physical and 
mental health outcomes 
for children and young 
people 

Sustainable consultant 
and midwifery led 
maternity care across 
both hospitals

Strong community 
maternity services

Improve outcomes for 
patients with major 
physical and mental health 
conditions

Improve the experience 
and outcomes for patients 
with Learning Disabilities 
& Autism

Timely access to the right 
specialist care when you 
need it

Frail elderly patients 
supported by ICCs to:

• Avoid unnecessary 
hospital admissions

• Stay well at home with 
personalised care 

Changes that contribute to this aim:

Integrate emergency care services within each district 
general hospital

Build a new Cancer Centre at the Cumberland Infirmary 

Complete the redevelopment of the West Cumberland 
Hospital

Develop an integrated stroke service and a Hyper 
Acute Stroke Unit with expanded Early Supported 

Stroke Discharge Teams (ESSD)

Improve mental health services in partnership with 
specialist providers. 

Support the development of wider social and 
independent care services.

Support the development of Primary Care Networks.

Deliver safe personalised services joined 
up for children and young people and their 
families

Starting
Well

Develop strong networks and partnerships 
with specialist centres

Develop our two district general hospitals to 
deliver safe and sustainable acute services 
across our rural geography

Develop and support primary care

Living
Well

Ensuring that our physical and mental 
health services for older  people are person-
centred, safe and high quality

Ageing
Well

28



36

4.3 Strategic Enabler A
Be a great place to work 
and develop
The performance of any health and care system 
ultimately depends on its people. We must work 
together to make this a rewarding environment.  

Delivering our vision requires a confident, capable 
and motivated workforce. We need to attract and 
retain skilled people to work here. We want to 

ensure that North Cumbria is a great place to live 
and work and that our staff have access to the 
right training, resources and support to do their 
job well. 

The NHS Long 
Term Plan.
Nationally the NHS has committed to 
backing our workforce by

When we asked people 
about what we must do over 

the next five years they 
said:

Increasing the training and recruitment of 
more NHS professionals 

Making the NHS a better place to work 

Improving leadership culture

Changing the operating model

Creating more training, placements and 
apprenticeships

Increasing the number of volunteers

Staff should 
be valued and 

supported

A leadership that 
is inclusive and 

supportive and listens 
to staff

A  focus on 
recruitment and 

retention

Staff trusted to 
do their job and 
empowered to 

innovate and improve 
what they do

Grow our own 
staff from our 
communities

Improve the
perception that young people have 

about the NHS being a tough place to 
work

37

Our Successful Strategy 
will lead to:

A valued and happier 
workforce which 
will improve patient 
experience.

A leadership culture 
that listens to staff and 
supports innovation.

Sustainable services 
across all health and 
care sector services 
that are less affected by 
workforce challenges.

Key successes
• Success in recruiting

• High retention rates

• A flexible workforce

• Improved staff satisfaction

• A broader range of roles 
that match the needs of our 
communities

• Services are more 
sustainable

Changes that contribute to this aim:

Living by our culture and values 

Providing opportunities to have a rewarding career

Workforce plans that ensure we have the right 
people and skills to meet future needs

New primary care roles such as first contact 
physiotherapists, social prescribing link workers 
and community paramedics

A commitment to Talent Management & 
Succession Planning

Confidence in working with patients, the 
community and Third Sector in service 
improvement

More opportunities for research

Innovative roles which will be more attractive and 
rewarding

A supported volunteer workforce

The core objectives of this Strategic Aim are:

Live our values and improve the experience of our 
staff

A stable workforce with low vacancy rates

Work in a healthy and safe culture 

Staff feel valued and know their

contribution counts
Staff are empowered to improve their job and 
develop new ways of working through innovation 
and access to the right digital solutions

Our staff and leaders work and learn together in 
networks and across pathways of care

29



38 39

4.4 Strategic Enabler B
Integrate how health and care
organisations work together 
In North Cumbria we know it is important work 
collaboratively across our organisations to improve 
outcomes for our local population. This means 
that instead of working just within our individual 
organisations we want to integrate our health and 
care services.

More people are living longer with a number of 
major health conditions, such as diabetes, heart 
disease and dementia.  These individuals need to 
be supported by multidisciplinary teams working 
together.

The NHS Long 
Term Plan.

Nationally the NHS has committed to 
An integrated approach to health and 
care delivery by

When we asked people 
about what we must do 
over the next five years 

they said:

Increasing the services that can be 
provided jointly

Enabling organisations to work together 
as ‘Integrated Care Systems’ so they can 
plan and deliver services which meet the 
needs of their communities

Encouraging more collaboration between 
GPs, their teams and community 
services, as ‘primary care networks’ 

We need to integrate 
social care more into our 

delivery of healthcare 
services.

Build stronger 
relationships with 

district councils, police, 
North West Ambulance 
Service and education.

Value, understand 
and align the input 

and expertise of 
the Third Sector.

Develop 
shared records 

using digital 
technology.

Ensure that care 
is joined up and

person-
centred and not 
challenged by 
organisational 

barriers.
Develop regional specialist 

networks to sustain 
expertise and retain 

services locally
39

Our Successful Strategy will lead to:

Reduce duplication of effort for our staff 

Strong regional relationships supporting the 
retention of some specialist services locally.

Joined up, person-centred and seamless 
services that support people out of hospital in our 
communities

Changes that contribute to this aim:

Develop the merged Trust and evolve the clinical 
commissioning group 

Integrate support services to improve patient care 
and staff working

Increase joint commissioning with the local 
authorities

Develop opportunities for commissioning within 
North Cumbria

Build better mental health services with our 
specialist provider

Continue to develop Integrated Care Communities 
as our core building blocks for primary and 
community services

Develop closer clinical service delivery links with 
the North East for specialist services

Support GP Practices to work together creating 
Primary Care Networks

Involving and working with our communities

Continue to develop the input of our NHS 
Foundation Trust Governors.

The core objectives of this Strategic Aim are:

Create a single integrated care organisation, 
designing, delivering and developing services for 
North Cumbria

Develop our Integrated Care Communities and 
Primary Care Networks, delivering services closer 
to where you live.

Work closely with communities and Third Sector 
partners on the design and delivery of services 

Work closely with social care at a local and 
strategic level

Shape the development of the North East  and 
North Cumbria System 

Resources being used efficiently and effectively in 
the right areas

Fewer organisational barriers for staff, patients and 
communities with a collective focus on delivering 
high quality health and care

30



40 41

4.5 Strategic Enabler C
Live within our means and
utilise our resources wisely
North Cumbria health and care organisations will 
work together to ensure that we can live within 
our means.  It is vital that we make the right 
investments in the right areas that will sustain and 
improve the quality of health and care services.  
This will involve; innovative ways of working, 
shifting some of our spending to prevention and 
community settings, working closer together 
and a robust focus on efficiency and quality 

improvement.  All of which will support our aim to 
ensure there is efficient use of our resources and 
that we achieve financial balance.

Meeting the challenge of increasing demand for 
services and stretched resources will require a 
considerable programme of work to;  manage 
demand, invest wisely and make efficiencies 
based on quality improvements.

The NHS Long 
Term Plan.

Nationally the NHS has committed to: 
Getting the most out of taxpayers’ 
investment in the NHS by

Working with doctors and other health 
professionals to identify ways to reduce 
duplication in how clinical services are 
delivered

Make better use of the NHS’ combined buying 
power to get commonly-used products more 
cheaply and reduce spend on administration.

Increase investment in mental health, and in 
primary and community health services

Improving clinical productivity to release more 
time for patient care

Deliver better value on medicines 

Make better use of capital investment 

When we asked people about what we must 
do over the next five years they said:

Focus on driving out 
waste and improving 

efficiency as part of cost 
improvement work

Invest in digital 
to reduce 

paperwork and 
duplication

Focus more on prevention 
to reduce the pressure on 
health and care resources

Work with the 
Third Sector more 

effectively

Our Health and Care system returning to financial balance

Transformation programmes that deliver quality care and 
release savings that can be reinvested in our services

Better value from our support services

Our
Successful 

Strategy will 
lead to:

Changes that contribute to this aim:

Reduce our corporate footprint – our 
administration, estate, energy consumption 
and overheads by working efficiently and 
collaboratively

Supporting patients to access services at a local level 
earlier to avoid becoming acutely unwell

Attracting investment funds in innovative projects.

Work with our community, Third Sector and other 
partners to make the best use of our collective 
capabilities 

Maximising our productivity and reducing waste.

41

The core objectives of this Strategic Aim are:

Create a single North Cumbria health economy 
budget

Achieve and sustain a Health and Care System in 
financial balance

Work together to reduce waste and become more 
efficient

Commission more services collectively in order to 
get better value for money

Rebalance investment to support out of hospital 
care and prevention

31



42 43

4.6 Strategic Enabler D
Deliver digitally enabled care

We know we need to improve the way we use 
digital technology across our health and care 
services. We have pockets of innovation but we 
need to ensure everyone has access to modern, 
effective and joined up systems. We will develop 
the right digital solutions involving the people who 
will use them.  

We want to ensure our staff are supported with 
the right technology to do their job well and give 
people the flexibility to access care and support 
digitally.  

The NHS Long 
Term Plan.
Nationally the NHS has committed to 
Delivering digitally enabled care by

Providing more convenient access to services 
and health information

Developing a local digital strategy

Supporting health and care professionals to 
work differently

Supporting clinical care 

Keeping your data safe

Improving population health with use of data 

Developing locally-delivered personal 
healthcare records

When we asked people 
about what we must do 
over the next five years 

they said:

Invest in IT 
to reduce 

paperwork and 
duplication.

Embrace digital to 
improve access to 

services.

Provide different ways 
to access services 
– talking to health 
professionals via 

video.

More records online 
rather than relying 
on paper records

More contact 
by digital 

technology.

More efficient working for health 
and care professionals so they 
have more time to care for you

Better use of your time

Our
Successful 

Strategy will 
lead to:

Changes that contribute to this aim:

Solid and robust infrastructure, information security 
and governance

Paper light health and care services

Using data to support specific groups of patients 
with health interventions such as stop smoking 
support.

Utilise technology to monitor people’s health at 
home

Electronic patient care record

Apps for managing your health and care

More remote video and telephone appointments

The core objectives of this Strategic Aim are:

Address the fragilities within the current 
infrastructure and systems 

Create, connect and transform data and 
information into intelligence that improves decision 
making and shapes health and care

Identify and deliver technological innovations that 
will support and transform how care is planned 
and delivered 

Improved safety, quality and 
outcomes

Improved use of data to support 
good decision making and wider 
improvements to health and care.

32



44 45

5 Making it happen
5.1 Delivering our strategy

There is an underpinning strategic delivery plan 
that sets out further detail on how and when we will 
achieve our plans, with milestones and targets to be 
achieved each year.

Locally our plans will be supported by effective 
governance including regular monitoring and 
updates at our System Leadership Board.

North Cumbria Health and Care is one of four 
integrated care partnerships that make up the 
North East and North Cumbria Integrated Care 
System (ICS) – a population of circa 3.1 million 
people. We are working closely with partners 
within the ICS to enable an ‘at scale’ approach to 
priorities that amplifies the collective impact e.g. 
Digital, Workforce, Strategic Commissioning.  

We have set out in this strategy, our vision, values and 
strategic ambitions for the next five years. We must now 
ensure we work collaboratively to deliver our plans.

5.2 Our environmental
and economic impact

We are committed to working in partnership to 
improve our environmental sustainability. We 
have a genuine responsibility and opportunity to 
tackle climate change and influence the health 
and sustainability of our local community. Our 
Sustainable Development Management Strategy 
and plan sets out our key commitments, objectives 
and actions for carbon reduction initiatives.  

We recognise our position as an employer and 
economic anchor institution within our community 
and the opportunities this presents to deepen our 
collaborative relationships.

6 Thank you

We collected feedback through 
face to face sessions, by visiting 
community forums, patient 
groups, youth groups and third 
sector networks as well as online 
surveys.

We are grateful to Healthwatch 
Cumbria for the additional work 
undertaken to reach people 
across our communities.

The feedback has helped us 
refine and shape our plans, which 
we will build on as we develop our 
annual objectives to support the 
delivery of the strategic aims we 
have committed to.

33



46

Designed by Lucien Xavier and Helena Davies
lucienxavierdesign@gmail.com

CARE

NORTH CUMBRI A

 

34



 

1 
 

North Cumbria Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) V2 
Five Year Operational Narrative Plan outline 2019/20 – 2023/24 
 
Introduction  

North Cumbria ICP is a partnership of the following statutory organisations covering 
a population of 324,000 people:  

 One Foundation Trust – North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Foundation 
Trust (Formerly North Cumbria University Hospitals NHS Trust and Cumbria 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust) 

 One CCG – North Cumbria CCG. 

 One County Council – Cumbria County Council. 

 Four District Councils – Carlisle, Allerdale, Copeland and Eden District. 

 One Mental Health Foundation Trust – Cumbria, Northumberland Tyne and 
Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

 One ambulance trust - North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust. 
 
From July 2019, the ICP area also includes 8 Primary Care Networks (Integrated 
Care Communities).   The ICP also has a wide ranging, small and large scale third 
sector across North Cumbria.  
 
In North Cumbria our health and care providers and commissioners are working in 
partnership with the County Council, the Third Sector and our community 
collaborating across all parts of the health and care system to improve outcomes for 
our local population. 
 
Our Vison is “to build a new integrated health and care system together, using our 

collective capabilities for a healthier and happier population”. 

We will do this by focusing on our three strategic aims: 

1. Improve the health and care outcomes of our local communities and support 
people of all ages to be in control of their own health 

2. Build health and care services around our local communities 
3. Provide safe and sustainable high quality services across our sparsely 

populated area 
 
We have already started to make changes, responding to the needs of our 
communities. Many of the NHS Long Term Plan intentions reflect initiatives already 
underway and our local needs will help shape how we deliver future national 
priorities. 

In 2016 we held our ‘Healthcare for the Future’ public consultation about some of the 
services where there were concerns about the sustainability and this gave us clear 
priorities which we have implemented.   

We are working collaboratively with frontline staff and our communities who have 
ideas about how things could be better.  

 

35



 

2 
 

By working together, we have already made some real improvements such as:  

 We have created eight Integrated Care Communities in North Cumbria where 
teams of Health and social care professionals, GPs, the voluntary sector and 
the community are working together as one team to support the health and 
wellbeing of local people. Their focus is to help people manage long term 
health conditions, improve access to information about healthier lifestyles and 
provide more care out of hospital so people can stay as well and independent 
as possible 

 We have developed a Delirium Reach Out Service (Reduce, Educate, Assess 
and Care with Hope). The service provides proactive management support and 
intervention so our patients receive the best possible care 

 Preventing strokes  -  Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service is helping to detect 
Atrial Fibrillation (AF) - an irregular or fast heartbeat. Copeland Community 
Stroke Prevention project is holding community health checks. 
 

 
Our health services, North Cumbria Integrated Care NHS Foundation Trust and NHS 
North Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group, have been making shared decisions 
and setting system priorities for some time. Sharing the challenges of finance, 
workforce and improvement has enabled us to remove the distraction of 
organisational priorities, helping us to focus our collective resources on patients and 
communities. 

We are also working in partnership with Cumbria County Council to ensure our plans 
support the overarching aims of the ten year Health and Wellbeing Strategy for 
Cumbria as well as working together to ensure that health and care is truly joined up.  

Working collaboratively with our out of hours GP service Cumbria Health on Call 
(CHOC), our 39 GP practices we are supporting our primary care networks. Our 
partners include; North West Ambulance Service (NWAS), community pharmacies, 
our vibrant Third Sector and our regulators NHS England / Improvement.  

We are listening to our staff to help us innovate and improve the way we do things 
and we are building co-production as the way we involve our communities in our 
system improvement and development. 

We have a lot to do to tackle historic and ongoing challenges, but we believe that by 
working together with our communities, we can ensure that North Cumbria will be the 
better place to ‘Start Well, ‘Live Well’ and ‘Age Well’. 

As one of four integrated care partnerships in the North East and North Cumbria 
Integrated Care System (ICS) we are working closely with our partners recognising 
the benefits of an ‘at scale’ approach to those priorities to amplify the collective 
impact and reduce duplication.   

 

 

36



 

3 
 

 

Health, Wealth and Wellbeing 

Improving the health and care outcomes of our local communities and supporting 
people of all ages to be in control of their own health is one of our three strategic 
aims. We need to be better at predicting and preventing ill health. We want all people 
to stay well for longer by supporting them to make better choices.  We also want to 
ensure that those people with the worst health outcomes get the support they need 
to have a better quality of life and to live independently for as long as possible. 
 
Prevention 
Working with all health and care partners we are building a population health system 
that focuses on prevention, supporting patients to make the right choices about their 
health and reducing variation in outcomes that exist across our communities. 

The North Cumbria Population Health Programme has identified five prevention ‘high 
impact’ changes to help reduce the burden of the most prevalent conditions on 
health and care services: 
 

 Improving stop smoking pathways for high risk groups  

 Establishing a weight management pathway for children and adults 

 Developing a physical activity pathway 

 Maximising the effectiveness of the NHS Health Check programme 

 Improving the management of Cardiovascular Disease risk factors 

These form part of a wider population health approach that also includes work to e.g. 
address the wider social determinants of health.  All five high impact changes will 
directly support the developing social prescribing programme (and wider 
personalised care agenda) in North Cumbria (by strengthening the interventions and 
referral options for patients/clients into a range of community based services).  

In addition, over the next 18 months, North Cumbria Integrated Care Partnership will 
be providing Population Health Management training to staff involved in the eight 
Integrated Care Communities (following a successful bid to the Health Foundation’s 
Applied Analytics Fund).  This means there will be a legacy programme to help 
implement ongoing Population Health Management work when involvement in 
accelerator programmes end. 

Climate Change & Sustainability  

Climate Change is now recognised as the biggest public health threat this century 
and there is a substantial body of evidence around how climate change is affecting 
our world.  We recognise that climate change has significant implications for our 
current and future health and wellbeing and as an ICP we have a genuine 
responsibility and opportunity to tackle climate change and influence the health and 
sustainability of our local community.  
 
 
 

37



 

4 
 

As one of the largest local employers, consumers and provider of goods and 
services, we recognise the need and responsibility to undertake our activities in a 
way which minimises our environmental impact and ensures we have a wider impact 
as a Good Corporate Citizen on the local environment, economy and community.  
 
Our Sustainable Development Management Strategy and plan sets out our key 
commitments, objectives and actions to improve the environmental sustainability of 
our organisations, deliver real bottom line savings through a combination of quick 
wins and spend to save carbon reduction initiatives.  Underpinning this will be a 
combined staff awareness and behavioural change campaign.  
 
We are committed to working in partnership and maintaining a positive and on-going 
dialogue with our key stakeholders to deliver this strategy and the associated actions 
as part of the broader commitment to the NHS being an Anchor Institution.  
 
Workforce, Employment and Skills 
The workforce in North Cumbria is also the most valuable asset in health and social 
care and can be at the forefront of empowering people’s independence, choice and 
improving their social inclusion and social wellbeing.  Delivering this vision for North 
Cumbria requires a confident, capable, well-trained, motivated and engaged 
workforce. 
 
We have difficulty in attracting people to work here and pursue their careers in the 
region.  We also have an aging workforce, of which 3.15% could retire now and a 
further 15.73% within the next five years.  Therefore need to consider flexible job 
plans and roles to enable and encourage individuals to remain working here and be 
attracted to the area.  
 
Our People Plan identifies the objectives which need to be achieved to ensure that 
we have the optimum number of the workforce, with the best mix of skills, to support 
our communities in 2025. 
 
  

38



 

5 
 

Clinical Strategy and delivery of the Long Term Plan requirements 

Building health and care services around our local communities and providing safe 

and sustainable high quality services across our sparsely populated area are two of 

our three strategic aims 

We know that at times care can feel disjointed and that people don’t always receive 
the right support when they need it. By joining up health and care teams around our 
local communities we can respond and tailor that care and support.  This will better 
meet the changing needs of our communities and the people who live in them.   

To meet the changing needs of our communities we need to find innovative ways in 
which to develop and deliver quality care more sustainably across both primary and 
secondary care. By working with our partners, both within Cumbria and the North 
East we will develop our services to deliver the right care to meet our local needs. 
 
For our hospital services this will mean engaging and influencing regionally and 
nationally on the small rural district general hospitals and how care and workforce 
models will develop and evolve in the future.     It will also include how specialist 
clinical networks are developed in order to retain core and specialist services as 
locally as possible, whilst developing specialist pathways of care.  
 

Collaboration across the ICP 

RTT / Shorter planned care waits 

Currently the overall waiting list is significantly higher than the baseline March 2018 
level which, in line with national guidance, is set as the target maximum list size.  
Concurrent with this is the fact that urgent and routine patients are waiting longer 
than good practice would recommend, and longer than the constitutional standards.   
 
The intention is that the overall waiting list size brought back to the March 2018 level 
for 2020/21 whilst work to re-profile the list and address the long wait and urgent 
patients is phased through into 2020/21. There is a commitment to offering the 
choice for patients to have their planned care with another Trust if they have waited 
longer than 26 weeks.  There is also a commitment to preventing any 52 week 
breaches. 
 
Developing Primary Care and Primary care Networks 

We have eight PCN which mirror our Integrated care Communities and are working 
on a programme to significantly support the development of primary care over the 
next five years by delivering: 

 Personalised care including social prescribing 

 First contact physiotherapists already working in General Practice 

 The enhanced care home model 

 Health pathways model improving the pathways between primary and 
secondary care 

 Population Health 

39



 

6 
 

 Continue to develop strong partnership working through our Integrated Care 
Communities, working with; community services, acute hospitals, third sector 
social care, council services and other local services. 

 Develop our primary care networks  

 The North Cumbria Advice and Guidance system has been a great success 
with GPs and reduced unnecessary referrals to secondary care.  The use of 
this system will continue to expand and support GPs across the area. 

 

Cancer 

Exciting work is ongoing between Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Trust and 
North Cumbria Hospitals Trust to build and run the new Northern Cancer Centre in 
Carlisle.  This will support the provision of: 

 Better local services for the population of North Cumbria which comply 
with national service specifications for radiotherapy and chemotherapy, 
and deliver cancer waiting times (CWT) standards 

 A resilient, efficient and cost-effective clinical oncology service from a 
major Cancer Centre  

 A modern oncology centre on the Cumberland Infirmary site which 
integrates day case oncology services for WNE Cumbria  

A joined up and system working approach to prevention, early diagnosis and timely 
referrals/treatment of cancer  across our North Cumbria Health and Care ICP 
provides significant opportunities to help us manage some of the issues and 
challenges that we face.  

Mental Health 

Mental Health and Learning Difficulty services for adults and children in North 
Cumbria have experienced a number of long standing challenges over the years 
which have not been sustainably addressed.  From October 2019, Northumberland 
Tyne & Wear NHS Foundation Trust has become Cumbria, Northumberland Tyne & 
Wear NHS Foundation Trust and will provide services in North Cumbria and across 
the entire ICS.  

North Cumbria will make significant progress towards developing innovative and 
evidence based integrated pathways.  These will have been developed by the 
people who use mental health and learning disability services and their families and 
carers and will be across all care provision to meet the physical health, mental health 
and wellbeing needs of our population. 

We will have the right staff in the right place and in the right numbers.  North 
Cumbria will be regarded as an excellent place to train and develop. 

Mental health will be at the forefront of all decisions around strategy and spending in 
North Cumbria – there will be no health without mental health. 

 

 

40



 

7 
 

Stroke 

In North Cumbria ICP we are making significant changes to our acute and 
community stroke services.  We will be rolling out a new Hyper Acute Stroke Unit at 
the Cumberland Infirmary Carlisle.  Also, an Early Support Stroke Discharge (ESSD) 
service will cover the whole area and enable patients to receive the right support in 
the community.  We have a stroke prevention programme which has been co-
produced and developed with key partners across health, care, public health and our 
community which will form an essential part of our stroke prevention programme.  

 
Respiratory 

The aim for respiratory care is to move away from a reactive based treatment to a 
more proactive model of care delivery with the focus on prevention, conservative 
treatment and managing escalation within the community whenever appropriate.  

We will bring Primary and Secondary care much closer together within the 
respiratory pathway where, for example, GPs will be increasingly supported by 
hospital based consultants through the use of Consultant Connect and Advice and 
Guidance.  Additionally, “Attend Anywhere” will facilitate the delivery of some 
outpatient activity in local communities making access for patients easier.  

The delivery of pulmonary rehabilitation will change and will integrate the use of 
health coaches and trans-diagnostic education programmes which will provide 
support for a wider range of conditions.   

 
  

41



 

8 
 

Driving up performance where there are known issues across the North Cumbria ICP 

Cancer 62 day waits 

In common with many parts of England, North Cumbria has seen a significant growth 
in the demand for cancer services, driven in part by increased public awareness of 
the symptoms and especially in parts of North Cumbria, the increasing numbers of 
elderly people who are more susceptible to getting cancer.  Cancer treatments are 
provided locally within the ICP and also through the tertiary centres in the North 
East.  
 
Recognition of the increases in demand already seen and the expectation that this 
demand will continue to grow, is reflected in the investment currently being made in 
the Carlisle Cancer Centre.  The resilience and sustainability of the new service is 
further enhanced by the strengthened partnership with the tertiary centre in 
Newcastle and the coordination through the Cancer Alliance. 
 
Urgent and Emergency Care – A&E 

Whilst there is no single root cause, the impact of increased demand, high acuity 
patients combined with the challenges of recruiting key clinical staff and managing 
patient flow, have come together and impacted adversely on A&E. 

We have already made significant progress in improving patient flow through 
reduced delayed discharges, reviewing the internal processes within the hospitals 
and in recruiting permanent members of our clinical teams to replace short term 
locums. 
 
There is a clear focus for our ICCs to focus on reducing hospital attendances to A&E 
and significant progress has already been made in stemming growth in non-elective 
admissions and A&E attendances by providing enhanced support to patients in our 
communities.  
  
The greatest opportunity for addressing urgent care performance lies with patient 
flow and continued focus on how long patients stay in hospital and also making 
greater use of same day care.  We are currently developing an emergency care 
village on both our acute hospital sites to improve the emergency care flow to 
provide a better co-ordination of hospital and partner services.  This integrated 
approach builds on the progress already made in working in a seamless manner 
across the different parts of the service and is intended to improve our use of beds 
and maximise the alternatives to hospital attendance and overnight admission. 
 
 
Elective and Diagnostics Waiting Times (RTT) 

The current referral to treatment times for outpatients, elective admission and 
diagnostics are all currently falling below constitution standards. Our intention is to 
undertake a full review of the clinical and supporting administrative processes for 
each of these areas, focussing on further improvement to theatre and outpatient 
clinic scheduling, alignment of medical and other staffing rotas.  

42



 

9 
 

It is also intended to review and improve the data quality underpinning the waiting list 
and the use of patient tracking to ensure that patients are seen based on clinical 
urgency and time on the waiting list. 
 
It is expected that recovery will be a medium term objective within the life of this 
plan, with the intention being that the Trust will deliver sustainable waiting times for 
elective and diagnostic patients with capacity aligned to need, 
 

Local integration at place 
 
The North Cumbria ICP has been working as an integrated care system since 2018 
and has developed system wide working, relationships and shared priorities. 

We have created eight Integrated Care Communities in North Cumbria where teams 
of Health and social care professionals, GPs, the voluntary sector and the 
community are working together as one team to support the health and wellbeing of 
local people.  Their focus is to help people manage long term health conditions, 
improve access to information about healthier lifestyles and provide more care out of 
hospital so people can stay as well and independent as possible. 

Below are some of the specific changes that we plan to deliver to support local 

integration in our communities: 

 Further develop ICCs to include mental health, muscular treatment service 
and children’s services.  

 Develop pathways of care for patients that join together primary, community 
and secondary care, improve quality and experience. 

 Communities will be involved in shaping future services, linked to developing 
thriving communities 

 Utilise technology to monitor people’s health at home and develop 
interventions and target disease areas across communities 

 An increase in use of the Third Sector and social prescribing 

 Primary Care Networks (PCNs) delivering significant changes to how care is 
provided in communities 

 

Our Better Care Fund will continue to support the progression of integration across 
Health and Social Care in North Cumbria, with a focus on reducing avoidable 
hospital admissions, reducing delayed hospital discharge and helping people to stay 
well at home.  There will be continued support for our Integrated Care Communities 
(ICCs). ICCs are the vehicle for delivering integration at place, with more joined up 
support in our communities, close to where people need it. 

Enablers 

Finance and Activity 

North Cumbria health and care organisations will work together to ensure that we 
can live within our means.  It is vital that we make the right investments in the right 
areas that will sustain and improve the quality of health and care services.   

43



 

10 
 

 
This will involve; innovative ways of working, shifting some of our spending to 
prevention and community settings, working closer together and a robust focus on 
efficiency and quality improvement.  All of which will support our aim to ensure there 
is efficient use of our resources and that we have financial balance by 2024. This will 
include oversight of system level efficiency programmes informed by the Rightcare, 
Model Hospital and GIRFT programmes. 
 
As the system is currently structured, funding levels cannot keep pace.  If we accept 
a conservative estimate of inflation at 1%, new medical developments at 1% and 
demand rising at 4%, then the health and social care system as currently configured 
would require at least a 6% budget increase each year to maintain our position. 
 
Delivering against this backdrop will require a considerable programme of work 
across our system to; reduce demand, invest wisely and making efficiencies based 
on quality improvements. 
 
 
Workforce 

Our planned changes around one of our enabling aims are as follows: 
 

 Development of our culture and values, including how we continuously learn 
and improve together 

 Provide opportunities for them to have a rewarding career 

 Develop a workforce with targeted plans to ensure we have the right people 
and skills to meet future needs 

 Develop new primary care roles such as first contact physiotherapists, 
physician’s associates, social prescribing link workers and community 
paramedics 

 Develop attractive career pathways and programmes 

 Focus on Talent Management and Succession Planning 

 Develop more confidence in involving patients, the community and third sector 
in service improvement 

 Create more significant opportunities for research and develop innovative 
roles which will be more attractive / rewarding 

 
Digital 

We know we need to improve the way we use digital technology across our health 
and care services.  We have pockets of innovation but we need to ensure everyone 
has access to modern, effective and joined up systems.  We will develop the right 
digital solutions involving the people who will use them.   

We want to ensure our staff are supported with the right technology to do their job 
well and give people the flexibility to access care and support digitally. 

 
 

 

44



 

11 
 

Estates 

Across the North ICP providers and commissioners are fully engaged with the NENC 
ICS estates strategy.  Our ambition is to provide a more fit for purpose, flexible, 
greener and more cost efficient estate. 

Below are some of the key estates programmes for delivery: 
 

 West Cumberland Hospital redevelopment – the next phase of development 

 CIC Emergency Care Village with fully integrated GP’s and Primary Care & 
diagnostic capacity 

 Cancer Centre at Cumberland Infirmary Carlisle 

 Community Hospitals redevelopment 

 Maintain Core Equipment to support Clinical Services 
 

Conclusion  

The strategic direction set out in this narrative is taken from the strategy we have 
developed for North Cumbria.  The aims and enablers identified in our strategy 
support the ambitions of the NHS Long Term Plan and the critical areas of focus 
locally in improving health and wellbeing outcomes and sustaining and developing 
services locally across primary and secondary care.  
 
North Cumbria ICP Strategic Aims: 

 
1. Improve the health and care outcomes of our local communities and support 

people of all ages to be in control of their own health; 

2. Build health and care services around our local communities; 

3. Provide safe and sustainable high quality services across our sparsely 
populated area. 

 
North Cumbria ICP Strategic Enablers: 

A. Be a great place to work and develop; 

B. Integrate how health and care organisations work together; 

C. Live within our means and use our resources wisely; 

D. Deliver digitally enabled care. 
 
 

 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2A – NHS LTP METRICS – DRAFT  
 
E.D.16: Proportion of the population with access to online consultations 
E.D.20: Citizen facing tools: Proportion of the population registered to use NHSApp 
E.D.21. Cyber Security 
E.A.3: IAPT Roll-Out 
E.H.9: Improve access to Children and Young People’s Mental Health Services (CYPMH) 
E.H.12: Inappropriate adult acute mental health Out of Area Placement (OAP) bed days 
E.H.13: People with severe mental illness receiving a full annual physical health check and follow up 
interventions 
E.H.15: Perinatal mental health: Access rate to specialist perinatal mental health services 
E.H.16: Mental Health Liaison services within general hospitals meeting the “core 24” service 
standard 
E.H.17: Number of people accessing Individual Placement and Support 
E.H.18: EIP Services achieving Level 3 NICE concordance 
E.H.19: Number of people receiving care from new models of integrated primary and community 
care for adults and older adults with severe mental illnesses 
E.H.20: Coverage of 24/7 age-appropriate crisis provision for children and young people which 
combines crisis assessment, brief response and intensive home treatment functions 
E.K.1: Reliance on inpatient care for people with a learning disability and/or autism 
E.K.3: Learning Disability Registers and Annual Health Checks delivered by GPs 
E.M.23: Ambulance Conveyance to ED 
E.M.24: Delayed Transfers of Care 
E.M.25: Length of stay for patients in hospital for over 21 days 
E.N.1: Personal Health Budgets 
E.N.2: Social prescribing referrals 
E.N.3: Personalised Care and Support Planning 
E.P.1: One year survival from cancer 
E.P.2: Proportion of cancers diagnosed at stages 1 or 2 
E.Q.1: Stillbirth Rate 
E.Q.2: Neonatal Mortality Rate 
E.Q.3: Percentage of women placed on a continuity of carer pathway 
E.Q.4: Brain Injury Rate 
E.R.1: Number of people supported through the NHS Diabetes Prevention Programme 
E.S.1: Proportion of patients directly admitted to a stroke unit within 4 hours of clock start 
E.S.2: Percentage of applicable stroke patients who are assessed at 6 months 
 
 

47



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Meeting date:    25 October 2019

From: Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care 
System 

LANCASHIRE AND SOUTH CUMBRIA HEALTH AND CARE 
STRATEGY

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 This paper provides an update to the Cumbria Health and Wellbeing Board 
on the planning process to respond to the NHS Long Term Plan in 
Lancashire and South Cumbria.

2.0 LINKS TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY

2.1 The Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care System (ICS) plan is 
integral to the delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  Considerable 
work has been undertaken between partners to ensure that the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy – and in particular the Health and Wellbeing board’s 
priority areas.

3.0 RECOMMENDATION

3.1 Note the approach being taken to develop a Strategic Plan for the 
Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care System

3.2 Note the current position and next steps in the process.

4.0 BACKGROUND 

4.1 The Lancashire & South Cumbria Integrated Care System (ICS) is required 
nationally to submit an ICS Strategic Plan by the 15th November, in response 
to the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) and the local needs of our population over 
the next five years.

4.2 At the time of the meeting, refinement of the draft plan will still be being 
undertaken by the L&SC ICS.  The Board is therefore presented with the 
attached report (Appendix 1).

49

Agenda Item 4b



4.3 It is anticipate that the submission and approval process will be iterative.  It 
is therefore proposed that the Board receive a further update at its 
December meeting.

Andrew Bennett
Executive Director of Commissioning
Lancashire and South Cumbria ICS

Anthony Gardener
Director of Planning and Performance
Morecambe Bay CCG

October 2019

APPENDICES

Appendix 1  Strategic Plan Development – Update Report

BACKGROUND PAPERS

No background papers.

50



Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care System

Strategic Plan Development - Update Report 

Background

This paper provides an update to the Cumbria Health and Wellbeing Board on the planning 
process to respond to the NHS Long Term Plan in Lancashire and South Cumbria.

The Lancashire & South Cumbria  Integrated Care System (ICS) is required nationally to 
submit an ICS Strategic Plan by the 15th November, in response to the NHS Long Term Plan 
(LTP) and the local needs of our population over the next five years. The plan comprises three 
key components; a quantified delivery plan (finance, activity & workforce), a metrics plan 
based upon performance and outcomes, accompanied by a written strategic narrative.

The ICS drafted a set of early partnership priorities called ‘Our Next steps’ which was 
circulated  to CCG Governing Bodies, Provider Trust Boards and Health and Wellbeing Boards 
in the of Spring 2019 (Appendix 1). This document acknowledged that further work was 
required by the partners to support the development of the ICS Strategic Plan. In responding 
to the priorities set out in the Long Term Plan, the current stage of work also builds upon 
existing plans in each of our local Integrated Care Partnerships (Better Care Together – 
Morecambe Bay) to improve outcomes, join up health and care services and make best use 
of the resources available.

Overview  - Vision and Objectives

Our vision for Lancashire and South Cumbria is that communities will be healthy and local 
people will have the best start in life, so they can live and age well.

At the heart of this are the following ambitions: 

 We will have healthy communities
 We will have high quality and efficient services
 We will have a health and care service that works for everyone, including our staff

The ICS Strategic Plan builds upon the eight partnership priorities set out in the ICS ‘Our Next 
Steps’ document, to agree the ambition and approach to respond to the strategic challenges 
facing our ICS. The success of the partnership priorities is vital to enable delivery of plans set 
out across the system.

The strategy also sets out the programmes and plans to deliver against the aims and 
objectives of the NHS Long-Term Plan and to meet the health and wellbeing needs of our 
local Lancashire & South Cumbria population. Recognising the significant ambitions in the 
Long Term Plan to improve the health of the population and transform the delivery of health 
and care services, the process of developing the Strategic Plan is intended to create a clear 
set of priorities for the partner organisations to pursue over the next five years.

51



Our Approach 

The process to create the ICS strategic plan has been taken forward in three key stages of 
development. These are: 

1. First Draft ICS strategic plan submission – 27th September 2019
2. Refinement and modelling of plans – October-mid November 2019
3. Final Draft ICS Strategic Plan submission – 15th November 2019

It is expected that there will be further iterations of the ICS plan on the basis of feedback from 
NHS England/Improvement, continued work on finance, activity and workforce plans and 
updated action plans for the priority programmes in the ICS.

Stage 1. Draft ICS strategic plan submission

The first stage is completed, and a draft of all three components of the ICS strategic plan were 
submitted for review to the NHSEI regional team on the 27th September. 

Individual CCG and Provider organisations were asked to submit a draft of their finance, 
activity and workforce plans to confirm the resources under each of these categories. The 
metrics plan was a mixture of both ICS level and organisational level submissions for 
performance and outcome measures. In addition, each Integrated Care Partnership/Multi-
specialty Community Provider (ICP/MCP) has provided an updated summary of its plans for 
integrated health and care in each area. 

Contributions to this first stage of work were also requested from each of the programmes 
operating across the whole ICS. Understandably, these at varying points in their development. 
Several programmes are established (e.g. Stroke, Learning Disability) while others are at a 
much earlier stage of consideration. 

For these reasons, system leaders agreed to develop the first draft of the Strategic Plan under 
a “do minimum” scenario, allowing a period to create a baseline position from which to 
understand where further work would be required to firm up and model ideas into plans. ICS 
and local leads worked together to agree the baseline assumptions under which this baseline 
stage of the plans would be drafted.

.The developing narrative has identified a number of clear priorities for the ICS partners to 
take forwards. These can be categorised broadly into three types:

 Service priorities– responding to service commitments in the Long Term Plan and 
addressing local needs

 Enabling priorities – action designed to strengthen the delivery of front line care, 
promote innovation and workforce development

 Efficiency priorities– programmes devised to improve the financial stability of the 
Lancashire and South Cumbria system

There is a recognition that the system needs to agree priorities over the whole of the five year 
period – it is not possible to take action on every issue immediately. On this basis, the 
submission identifies a number of early priorities for action over the next two years as follows:

52



Category Priority areas

Service Priorities Healthy neighbourhoods, primary and 
community services
Urgent and Emergency Care
Cancer
Mental health and learning disability
Planned Care
Maternity
Stroke
Fragile specialist services

Enabling Priorities Workforce
Prevention and population health
Digital
Estates
Communications and Engagement
Leadership and Organisational 
Development

Efficiency Priorities Reducing demand pressures
Remodelling outpatient activity
Improving operating theatre efficiency
Redesigning Musculo-skeletal services
Developing Shared Service models

During stage one, colleagues from the NHS England and Improvement (NHSEI) regional team 
have conducted two checkpoint reviews to oversee and advise on the development of the draft 
plan. 

As a result of the work undertaken at stage one, the ICS  partners were able to set out an 
aggregated baseline position across Lancashire & South Cumbria and where further work was 
required ahead of the next submission. Plans would need to ensure that:

 The ICS can demonstrate how partners will focus resources on improving population 
health and taking action to reduce health inequalities;

 Assumptions about the availability of the health and care workforce are retested;
 Partners make a collective commitment to the efficiency priorities set out above;
 These proposals are designed to reduce significant financial deficits in the system 

which are not in line with the ICS financial control total;
 There are realistic expectations about the levels of activity required to meet the needs 

of the population.

This work has been agreed for development in stage two. 

Stage 2. Refinement and modelling of plans

The objective of stage two is to build upon the baseline position established at the end of 
September. Planning leads are now modelling the impact of our key priorities (service, 
enabling, efficiency) on expected outcomes as well as the financial, activity and workforce 
position. 

53



Inevitably for some programmes in the early phases of development, it may not be possible to 
assess the impact in enough detail to meet the final plan submission date but details will be 
included within the strategic narrative so that the ICS doesn’t lose sight or commitment to 
these programmes. 

Further work is required to set out the ambitious nature of the partners’ plans to improve the 
health of our communities, whilst at the same time being clear about the workforce, finance 
and demand challenges the system needs to tackle.

Stage 3. Final draft ICS Strategic Plan submission

Stage three pulls together the work from stages one and two to produce a final draft ICS 
strategic plan for submission as part of a national process on the 15th November. This version 
of the plan will be shared with all partners and submission will be overseen by the ICS Board.

In addition to these technical submissions, the ICS is also drafting a public summary document 
outlining the plans for public, patient groups and other stakeholders.

As indicated above, it is expected that there will be further iterations of the ICS plan on the 
basis of feedback from NHS England/Improvement, continued work on finance, activity and 
workforce plans and updated action plans for the priority programmes in the ICS. This may 
lead to a further review of the core assumptions in the plan.

Engagement

Throughout the development of the ICS Strategic Plan there has been engagement with wider 
stakeholders (universities, voluntary, community, faith and social enterprise sector, police, 
local Healthwatch). There has also been extensive direct engagement with staff, patients, 
public and partners to involve them in plans within each of the five local areas over the past 
two years.

Between May and September 2019, staff from partner organisations were actively involved in 
discussions regarding the key messages from the ‘Our Next Steps’ document. This included 
the development of a toolkit of materials to support system leaders, leaders from ICP/MCPs 
and Primary Care Networks (PCNs) to hold discussions and collate feedback from staff and 
partner organisations.

A survey for staff working in partner organisations (including NHS, local authority and 
Voluntary, Community Faith and Social Enterprise and education) regarding the partnership 
priorities and partnership working received 397 responses in August 2019.

At a national level, NHSEI commissioned Healthwatch England to undertake an initial 
engagement exercise to capture insight from local people to contribute to local plans 
developing across the country. In Lancashire and South Cumbria, the ICS has worked in 
partnership with Healthwatch Together, a partnership of the four local Healthwatches, to 
deliver this activity which included surveys and focus groups with 969 local people. The ICS 
has ensured that the insight independently reported by Healthwatch is being used to shape 
plans in relevant areas such as mental health, primary care and maternity services. Evidence 
from the report shows that access, getting the right treatment, receiving care and support at 
home and security of personal data are all important issues for local people.

A programme of an additional 23 targeted focus groups commenced in August 2019, 
commissioned and co-ordinated by the ICS and delivered in partnership with ICP/MCPs in 
partnership with the Healthwatch Together partnership. Audiences for this second wave of 
focus groups were identified based on local need and included hard to reach groups and 

54



members of the public involved in neighbourhood development. These have provided valuable 
local insight on the ICS vision and partnership priorities along with topics identified by 
ICP/MCPs, or in some areas, our emerging Primary Care Networks (PCNs). This feedback 
has been received and is contributing to the plan. The ICS has agreed a further 10 more focus 
groups at the request of ICP/MCPs to continue the ongoing collaborative cycle of engagement.

Collaborative Working

The strategic plan development process has demonstrated positive collaborative working and 
leadership across Lancashire & South Cumbria. This has been reflected in both the 
development of plans and the decision making to date. 

Focused workshops and events at various intervals have been held and facilitated, both at 
ICS and ICP/MCP levels to bring together key stakeholders to share their current plans and 
ideas to support the collaborative development of the strategy.

A Clinical Congress was held on the 17th September to bring together senior clinicians from 
across the ICS to build upon the emerging ICS clinical strategy and support the delivery of the 
associated programmes. Clinicians were keen to share examples and commitment to joint 
working particularly where this supports plans for sustainable, safe services, greater efficiency 
and reduced waste in service delivery and the wider agenda to improve models of prevention 
and population health. The Congress acknowledged the importance of continued support for 
clinical leaders working on the priorities emerging from the Long Term Plan.  

Delivery and Next Steps 

This intensive phase of planning activity will continue for the rest of the autumn period as set 
out in this paper. Going forward, system leaders are working together to ensure that the 
priorities agreed to deliver the Long Term Plan are taken forwards with a robust approach to 
governance, decision-making and resourcing.

It will also be vital to ensure that for each of the major priorities, an agreed programme 
management approach to delivery is set out by the ICS partners confirming the work which 
will take place across the whole system, in each locality and/or neighbourhood. This will 
support the management of risks and interdependencies as well as providing oversight and 
assurance across all partners. 

The next steps in the process are therefore as follows:

 Completion of stages two and three for the final ICS Strategic Plan submission;
 Publication of a public summary document accompanied by continued communication 

and engagement activity by all partners in line with the agreed plans;
 Development and subsequent application of the common programme management 

approach. 

55



Recommendations 

The  Board is asked to:

 Note the approach being taken to develop a Strategic Plan for the Lancashire and 
South Cumbria Integrated Care System

 Note the current position and next steps in the process.

Andrew Bennett Anthony Gardner

Executive Director of Commissioning Director of Planning and Performance

Lancashire and South Cumbria ICS Morecambe Bay CCG

56



Appendix 1 ICS Partnership Priorities (Our Next Steps)

1. Maximise the benefits of our work in neighbourhoods
2. Deliver an integrated health and social care workforce for the future with the 

capacity and capability to provide sustainable care and support to our local 
communities.

3. Strengthen the resilience and mental health of people and communities
4. Establish a group model for all hospital services in Lancashire and South Cumbria
5. Reinvigorate strategic partnerships across the public sector
6. Establish a public sector enterprise and innovation alliance with our ICS partners, 

including academic partners and Local Enterprise Partnerships to deliver inward 
investment and support job creation

7. Bring the entire health and social care system back into financial balance
8. Consolidate commissioning so that our arrangements for planning and prioritising 

our resources improve our population’s health and the outcomes of health and social 
care

57



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING AND 
DEVELOPMENT DAY DATES

MEETING DATE DEVELOPMENT DAY DATE

2019
Friday 25 October at 10.00 am in Cumbria 
House, Carlisle
Friday 6 December 10.00 am in Cumbria 
House, Carlisle
2020

Friday 24 January at 2.00 pm in Penrith
Friday 7 February at 10.00 am in County 
Offices, Kendal

Friday 13 March at 10.00 am in Cumbria 
House, Carlisle

Friday 24 April at 10.00 am in Cumbria 
House, Carlisle

Friday 5 June at 10.00 am in Cumbria 
House, Carlisle

Friday 10 July at 10.00 am in County Offices, 
Kendal
Friday 4 September at 10.00 am in Cumbria 
House, Carlisle

Friday 2 October at 10.00 am in Cumbria 
House, Carlisle

Friday 20 November at 10.00 am in County 
Offices, Kendal
2021

Friday 22 January at 10.00 am in Cumbria 
House, Carlisle

Friday 5 February at 10.00 am in Cumbria 
House, Carlisle

Friday 12 March at 10.00 am in Cumbria 
House, Carlisle

Friday 16 April at 10.00 am in County 
Offices, Kendal

59

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4a North Cumbria
	Appendix 1 HWBB 25/10/19 - NHS Five Year Plans - North Cumbria
	Appendix 2 HWBB 25/10/19 - NHS Five Year Plans - North Cumbria
	Appendix 3 HWBB 25/10/19 - NHS Five Year Plans - North Cumbria

	4b Lancashire and South Cumbria
	Appendix 1 HWBB 25/10/19 - NHS Five Year Plans - South Cumbria

	5 Future Meeting Dates

